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Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited (the “Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive incame, rhanges in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
iregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

. o ™y '-\‘
Regislered Office

HYR& o (a partnership firm wilh Ragisiration No BA61223) converted inlo B S R & Co. LLP (a 14th Floor, Cenlral B Wing and North C Wing, Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco
Lirnite Ciabibty Parinership wilh LLP Ragfsiration No. AAB-8181) wilh effect from October 14, 2013 Center, Western Express Highway, Goregaon (Easl), Mumbai - 400063

a fxl Page 1 of 11




BSR&Co.LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company'’s ahility to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

= 28 .Q._s required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. _'.We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024,
received on 1 April 2024, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2)
of the Act

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2(A)(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such contrals, refer to aur separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 42 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

(i

=

the Note 57 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 57 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ji) above,

. contain any material misstatement,

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited

f.  Based on our examination which included test checks, except for instances mentioned below, the
Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which have the
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all the relevant transactions recorded in the respective software.

i. The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the database level to log
any direct data changes for the accounting software used for maintaining all books of account.

ii. The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled for certain fields and tables
at the application layer of the accounting software used for maintaining books of account relating
to Revenue and Receivables, Inventory, Property, plant and equipments, Purchase and payables.
Further, where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated, we did not come across any
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid/payable by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid/payable to any director is not in excess
of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed
other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Mg@e/@*
Abhishek

Partner
Place: Pune Membership No.: 062243
Date: 24 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24062343BKEWJS5963
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

B)
(i) (b)

(d

(e)

(i) (a)

(b)

(iii)

(iv)

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain
property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory, except goods-in-transit , has been physically verified by the management during
the year.For goods-in-transit subsequent evidence of receipts has been linked with inventory
records. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and
coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on
verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the
aggregate of each class of inventory

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(ii)(a) to 3(ii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from

.. the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

' \Ve have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

(vii) (a)

(b)

rules prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section
148(1) of the Act in respect of its manufactured goods and are of the opinion that prima facie,
the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not
carried out a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether these are
accurate or complete.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the Nature of Amount Amountpai Period to Forum
statute the dues Disputed d under which the where
(Rs. in protest amount dispute is
millions) (Rs. in relates# pending
millions)
The Income | Income Tax | 65.74 * From AY | Commision
Tax Act, 2015-16  to | er of Income
1961 AY 2021-22 Tax
(Appeals),P
une
Goods and | Goods and | 0.74 0.04 FY 2018-19 Commision
Services Tax | Services Tax er of State
Tax
(Appeals),
Pune
Goods and | Goods and 2.24 0.11 FY 2017-18 Additional
Services Tax | Services Tax Commission
er (Appeals-
1), CGST,
Pune
.| Goods and | Goods and 1.00 0.05 FY 2017-18 Commission
\Services Tax | Services Tax er of State
Tax
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Continued)
Name of the Nature of Amount Amountpai Period to Forum
statute the dues Disputed d under which the where
(Rs. in protest amount dispute is
millions) (Rs. in relates# pending
millions)
(Appeals),
Delhi
Goods and | Goods and 2.44 0.1 FY 2017-18 Commission
Services Tax | Services Tax er of State
Tax
(Appeals),
Kerala

*Represents adjustment/set off of brought forward losses/MAT credit
#FY and AY stand for Financial Year and Assessment Year respectively

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) (@  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable.

® The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is not
applicable.

{(x) (@)  The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause

g 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xI}-_('a}\ Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
~\ information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

(b)

(c)
(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(b)

(xvii)
(xviii)

(xix)

&)

been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required ta he registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they falf due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

. Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent

amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly,
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b} of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

e

Abhishek

Partner

Place: Pune Membership No.: 062243
Date: 24 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24062343BKEWJS5963
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Gennova
Biopharmaceuticals Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’'s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to tinancial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal contral
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

_——A-.company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
prbv“i‘deﬁeasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
“~
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

a5l she s
Abhishek

Partner
Place: Pune Membership No.: 062243
Date: 24 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24062343BKEWJS5963
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GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

Rs. in millions

5 per our report of even date attached.

For8 § R & Co, LLP
Firm Registration: 101248W/W-100022
Chartered Accountants

?ﬁ%)

Paitnor
Membership No, 062343

Flace: Pune

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statement

Company Secretary
Membership No. A35340
Place: Pune

Date: 31 May: 20124

A al
Particulars Notes March 31, 20294 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-currenl assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 2,514 91 1,084 15
Capital work-in-progress 4 8545 1,390 16
Right-of-use assels 6 33273 681 62
Intangible assets 5 5042 487
Intangible assets under development 4 2618
Financial assets
i} Investments 7 b -
ii} Other financial assets 8 109 57 B7 65
Deferred tax assets {net) 36 B9 14
Income tax assets (net} 37 o010 010
Other non current assels 9 686 70.34
Total non current assets 3,100.04 343421
Current assets
Inventories 10 1,479 62 1,397.64
Financial assets
i} Trade receivables 11 59581 610.94
i} Cash and cash equivalents 12 100.93 7289
iii} Bank balances other than (i} above 13 3389 26.56
iv} Other financial assets 14 21128 24492
Other current assets 15 34211 568.24
Tatal current assets 2,763.64 2,921.19
Total assets 5,863.68 6,355.40
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 16 55.11 5511
Other equity
Reserves and surplus 17 2,44991 2,126.93
Total equity 2,505.02 2,182.04
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
linancial liabilities
i} Borrowings 18 18336 32605
i) Lease Liabilities 6 211.79 386 83
iii} Other financial liabilities 19 1744 1378
Provisions 20 4142 40 BS
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 36 15.45 -
Other non current liabilities 21 162,05 16231
Total non current liabllities 631.51 929.82
Current liabllities
Financial Habilities
i) Borrowings 2 1,571 96 1,586.71
i) Lease Liabilities 6 17504 16631
iii) Trade payables 2
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 716 9.42
Total outstanding dues to others 663.02 1,192.45
W} Other financlal Jlabilities 24 162.12 146.18
Provisions 25 3383 24.16
Other current liabilities 26 68.41 64.93
Income tax liabilities (net) 37 4561 5338
Total current |abilities 2,727.15 3.243.54
Total liabliities 3,358.66 4,173.36
Total equity and llabilitles 5,863.68 6,355.40
* Amount befow Re 0.005 millians
Materlal accounting pollcies 1C

1w bishiall of the Board of Directors
i Bigpharmaceuticals Limited

=

o

Sanjay Singh
Whiala-tirne Dlrector & CEQ
DIN : 01693705

oot Q 1y \W”\CM.JI Dovaly



GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

Rs. in millllens

Far the year ended

Thiz notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statement
A per our report of even date attached.
ForBSR & Co. LLP

Firim Registration: 101248W/W-100022
Chartered Accountants

e

Abhishel
TFartnor
Membership No. 062343

Place: Pune

Company Secretary
Membership No. A35340

Place: Pune

Date: 21-May-2024

of the Board of Directors
armaceuticals Limited
FIPN2001PLCOLG253

Partlculars Notes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue:
Revenue from operations 27 4,220.82 3,730.15
Other income 28 3396 34.05
Total revenue 4,254,78 3,764.20
Cost of materials consumed 29 57974 468.40
Purchases of stock-in-trade 38030 23833
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods 30 {120.57) 70.95
Employee benefit expenses 31 76473 605.32
Depreciation and amortization expense 33 41273 352.03
Finance cost 34 216.13 207.13
Other expenses 32 1,501 49 1,390.35
Total expenses 3,734.55 3,332.51
Profit before tax 520.23 431.69
Tax expense 35
Current tax 16532 83.90
Deferred tax 32.38 40.69
Total tax expenses 197.70 124.59
Profit for the year 322.53 307.10
Other compreh Income / {exp ) {ocl)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 45 {0.67) 0.68
Income tax relating to above item 35 0.23 {0.20)
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassifled subsequently to profit or loss {0.44) 0.48
Total comprehensive Income for the year 322,09 307.58
Earnings per share:
Basic 38 58.52 $5.72
Diluted gL 5852 55.72
[Face value per share: Rs. 10 (March 31, 2023 : Rs.10)] ]
Material accounting policies 1c

WO

Whole-time Director & CEO
DIN : 01693705

Date: ) 1y AT S Qo2




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

As per our report of even date attached

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Firm Registration: 101248W/W-100022
Chartered Accountants

7 ehe

Abhlshek
Partner
Membership No. 062343

Place: Pune

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statement

R Gohad

Biopharmaceuticals Limited
#12 31PN2001PLCO16253

Company Secretary
Membership No. A35340

Place: Pune
Date: 21-May-2024

I k Sanjay Singh

Equity share capital Motes Rs. in millions
As at April 1, 2022 55.11
Changes in equity share capital 16
As at March 31, 2023 55.11
Changes in equity share capital 16
As at March 31, 2024 55.11

Rs. in milllons

Notes Reserves and surplus Total
Other equity Retalned eaming | Capital Redemption Other reserves
Reserve

As at April 1, 2022 1,257.32 550.00 10.54 1,817.86
Profit for the year 307.10 307.10
Issue of share options of Holding Company to 46 = 1.49 1,49
employees of the Company
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit 048 0.48
obligations {net of tax)
As at March 31, 2023 1,564.90 550.00 12.03 2,126.93
Profit for the period 322,53 322,53
Issue of share options of Holding Company to 46 0.89 0.89
employees of the Company
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit (0.44) - (0.44)
obligations {net of tax)
As at March 31, 2024 1,886.99 550.00 12,92 2,449.91
Material accounting policies 1c

i
"M.\M

Whole-time Director & CEO

DIN : 01693705

Date: fLL} mCX_AJ\ Q_,QQ_L!




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

Rs. in millicons

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash flow from operating activities:
Profit before taxation 520.23 431.69
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 41273 352.03
Employee share-based payment 089 149
Finance costs 214.39 205.08
Provision for doubtful debts 873 215
Change in fair value of financial liabilities 1.74 2.05
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (16.30) {0.28)
Interest income from banks and others {2.36) (1.35)
Gain on termination of leases (3.17}
Unwinding of discount on security deposits {6.54) {6.08)
1,133.51 983.61
‘Working capital adjustments:
- Decrease / (increase) in trade and other receivables 6.40 (130.36)
- (Increase) / decrease in inventories {82.00) (72.11)
- Decrease / (increase) in other assets 229.06 (89.77)
- Decrease / (increase) in other financial assets 20.95 (170.95)
- (Decrease) / increase in trade payables {531.69) 44.44
Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities 29.41 8.08
Increase / {decrease) in other liabilities 322 {74.85)
Increase / {decrease) in provisions 957 (9.94)
Cash generated from operating activities 818.43 488.15
Income taxes paid {(net of refund) {100 62) (46.30)
Net cash inflow from aperating activities [A) 717,81 441.85
Cash flow from invasting activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {340.00) {910.35)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and leasehold land 215.84 4,86
Interest received 217 1.04
Term deposit placed {37.27) {2.48)
Term deposit matured 27.32 0.34
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (131,94) {906.59)
Cash flow from financing actlvities:
Proceeds from borrowings 483.16 576.39
Repayment of borrowings {145.20) (309.02)
Principal payment of lcase llabliities (166.31) (154.22)
Interest paid (refer footnote 1 below) {230.32) {234.14)
Net cash used In from financing activities (C) {58.67) {120.99}
Net incresase/ {decrease) in cash & cash equivalents {A+B+C) 527.20 {585.73)
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year {Refer below) (587.74) (2.01)
Cash and cash equivalent at end of the year [Refer below) (60.54) (587.74)
Rs. in millions
[Components of cash and cash equival March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash on hand 0.01 0.01
Balances with banks 100.92 72.88
Cash credit facilities repayable on demand from banks (161.47) (660.63)
Total cash and cash equivalent* {60.54) (587.74)

*Cash and cash equivalent includes bank swerdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management,




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 {continued)

Rs. In millions

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings (refer note 18 and 22):
Opening balance 1,253.45 987.96
Amount borrowed during the year - -
Amount repaid during the year - -
Amortised cost and other adjustment 337.53 265.49
ClosIng balance 1,590.98 1,253.45
Finance cost (refer note 22):
Opening balance 417 177
Finance cost during the year 216.13 207.13
Amount paid during the year (including interest on lease liablity} {230.32) (234.14)
Amortised cost and other adjustment (includes borrowing cost capitalised during the
year) 17.96 29.41
Closing balance 7.94 4.17

Footnotes to the cash flow statement:

1 Includes interest expense of Rs. 17.96 million (March31, 2023: Rs 29 41 million) which has been capitalised in accordance with Ind AS 23, Borrowing Costs

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statement
As per our report of even date attached

ForBS R & Co. LLP
Firm Registration: 101248W/W-100022
Chartered Accountants

Abhishek
Partner
Membership No. 062343

Place: Piine

Date: O_L} TMowd 2(‘)'11{‘

Rutula fohad
Cumpany Secretary
Membership No. A35340

Mace: Pune
Date: 21-May-2024

While-time Director & CEQ
DIN : 01693705

J



GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

1A. General information:

Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited (the "Company") is a research-based biotech pharmaceutical Company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled
inIndia The Company is presently catering to the domestic as well as export markets and has one plant located in India

1B. Basis of preparation
a) Basls of preparation

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) as per the Companies (indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’} and other relevant provisions of the Act as amended from time to
time

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 21, 2024

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 1C. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated

b) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR), which is also the Company's functional currency. All the amounts disclosed in the financial
statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated

) Basis of measurement

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except for the following items:

Items Measurement Basls

Certain Financial assets and liabilities Fair value

Equity settled share based payment arrangements Fair value

Net defined benefit {asset} / liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit obligations

d) Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimations uncertainties that have a significant risk resulting in a material adjustment in the year ending 31 March
2024 is included in following notes:

Note 1C. c) Useful lives of praperty, plant, equipment;

Note 1C. d) Useful lives of intangible assets;

Note 6 - measurement of discount rate for inltial recognition of ROU and Lease Liability as per Ind AS 116
Note 10 - Valuation of inventories

Note 20 & 25 - recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of
resources;

e) Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company's accounting palicies and disclosures require the measurement of falr values, for both financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities,

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a team that has overall responsibility for
overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the Head of Treasury.

The team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is
used to measure fair values, then the team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the
requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hlerarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- level 2+ inputs other than quoted prices included in Loval 1 that arc obscrvable for the asset or liability, cither diraetly (i.c. as prices) or indiractly (i.e.
derived from prices).

- Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs)




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

1B. Basis of preparation {continued)

e) Measurement of fair values (continued)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair
value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same
level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:
- Note 41 — Fair value measurements;
- Note 46 — Employee stock option plan

f) Current versus non current classificatlon

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.
Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal operating cycle;

- it is held for the purpose of being traded;

- it is expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date

Current assets include the current portion of non-current assets / non-current financial assets All other assets are classified as non-current,
Liabllities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria;

- it is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;

- itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- itis expected to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- the Company does not have any unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Current liabilities include the current portion of non-current liabilities / non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified as non-current

Deferred tax assets and liabllities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities

Operating cycle

Based on the time involved belween Lhe acyuisition of assets for processing and thelr realization in cash and c¢ash equivalents, the Company has identified
twelve months as its operating cycle for determining current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet

1C. Material accounting policies
a) Forelgn Currency Translation

Transaction in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the Company at the exchange rates at the dates of transactions
or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilitles denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into functional currency at exchange rate when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange
rate at the date of transaction, exchange difference are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

b) Financlal Instruments

L Recognition and Initial

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade recelvable without a slgnificant financing component) or financial liability Is Initially measured at falr value plus, for an
item not at falr value through profit and loss {FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

1l Classliflcation and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- amortised cost; or .
- Fair value through profit and loss {FVTPL}




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

1C. Material accounting policies {continued)
b} Financial instruments {continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement {Continued)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their
financial assets

tial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
- itis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment's fair value in OCI {designated as FVQCI — equity investment). This election is made on an investment by investment basis

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the
way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information considered includes:
- The stated policy and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.

These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the
duration of the financial asset to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of asset;

How the performance of portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's management;
The risk that affect the performance of the business madel (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

- How managers of business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed ar the contractual cash flows
collected; and
- The frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do nat qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with
the Company's continuing recognition of the assets,

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whosc performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purpose of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for
time value of money and for credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and other basic leading risks and
costs {e.g. liguidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers contractual terms of the instrument.
This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition, In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

- term that would adjust the contractual rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- term that limits the Company's claim to cash flows for specified assets (e g. non-recourse features)

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid
amount of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for eatly teimination of cunttacl,
Additionally, for a financial asset acquired on a significant premium or discount to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or require prepayment
at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus acerued {but unpaid) cantrartual interest {which may also include reasonable
additional compensation for early termination} is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is significant at initial
recognition.

Fi ial assets: Sub. rement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss,

Financial assets at amortized cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the

effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss,




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

1C. Material accounting policies {continued)

b) Financial instruments {continued)

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL, A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it
is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss

iii. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive
the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which
the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In
this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss

iv. Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a

tegally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

) Property, plant and equipment

2. o,

i. Rec and ment

Items of property, plant and equipment {including capital-work-inprogress) are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including impert duties and non refundable purchase taxes, after dediicting
trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimate costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separated items {major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in statement of profit and loss,

il. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates and the cost of
the asset can be measured reliably, All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit or loss
asincurred

Hll. Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the
straight line method, and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the
Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, Freehold land Is not depreclated,

Depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets prescribed under Schedule 1 to the
Companies Act 2013 except for vehicles and furnitures and fixtures at leasehold premises. The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and
equipment far the current and rnmparative perinds are as follows:

Asset Management Useful life as per schodule 1f
Leasehold improvements As per lease NA

Plant and machinery 3 to 20 years 10 to 20 years
Electrical installation 10 years 10 years

Air handling equipment 15 years 15 years
Computers 3-6 years 3-6 years

Office equipment 5 years 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years 10 years

Vehicles S years 8-10 years

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and
consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives represents the period over which the management experts ta 11se these
assets.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) during the year is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which asset is ready for use (disposed off).




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

1C. Materlal accounting policies {continued)

d) Intangible assets
i. Initial recognition:

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses

li. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the expenditure will flow to Company

iii. Amortisation
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual value over their estimated useful lives using straight line

method, as is included in depreciation and amortisation in statement of profit and loss

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Intangible Asset Management estimated useful life
Brands acquired 5to 10 years
Software, license rights 2 to 10 years

Amoartisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted if appropriate

Iv. Intangible Assets under Development
Intangible assets under development are initially recognized at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently capitalized only if it is probable that the future
economic benefit associated with the expenditure wlll flow to Company

e) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost on inventories is based on weighted average formula, and includes
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion cost and other cost incurred in bringing them to their present location and
condition. In case of manufactured inventory and work-in-progress, cost includes an appropriate share of fixed production overheads based on normal
operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expense.

The net realisable value of work-in- progress is delermined with reference to the selling price of related finished products.

Raw materials, components and other supplies held for use in production of finished products are not written down below cost except in cases where
material price have declined and it is estimated that the cost of finished products will exceed their net realizable value

The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

The Company considers various factors like shelf life, ageing of inventory, product discontinuation, price changes and any other factor which impact the
Company's business in determining the allowance for obsolete, non-saleable and slow moving inventories. The Company considers the above factors and
adjusts the inventory provision to reflect its actual experience on a periodic basis,

f} Impairment

I Impairment of financial instruments
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised cost

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit - impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired’
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on estimated future cash flows of financial assets have occurred

Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes the following observed data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or being overdue for a period of more than 12 months from the credit term offered to the customer;
- the restructuring of loan or advance by the Company on the terms that the Company would not consider otherwise;

- it is probable that borrower will enter bankruptcy or the financial reorganization;

- the disappearance of active market for a security because of financial difficultles

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (“ECL”) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss. The Company
follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the
Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

1C. Material accounting policies {continued)
f) Impairment {(continued)

i. Impairment of financial instruments (Continued)

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets the Company recognises 12 month expected credit losses for all originated or acquired financial
assets if at the reporting date, the credit risk has not increased significantly since its original recognition However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used

ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss

While determining whether the credit risk of financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses,
the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost of effort, This includes both quantitate
and qualitative information and analysis based on Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward - looking
information

The Company assumes that the credit risk on financial assets has increased significantly if it is mare than 90 days past due

The Company considers financial asset to be in default when:

a The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to action such as realising security (if any is
held); or

b The financial asset is 90 days or more past due

Measurement of expected credit loss

Expected credit loss are probability weighted estiimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flow that the Company expects to receive)

Presentation of allowance of expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets
Write — off

The Gross carrying amount of financial asset is written off (either partially of full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery, This is generally
the case when Company determines that the debtor does not have asset or source of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amount
subject to write-off However, financial assets that are written-off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with Company's
procedures for recovery of amounts due

i, Impairment of non-financial asset

The Cumpany's non-financial ssets, other than Inventorles and deferred tax are 1eviewed sl ench 1eporling dale (o delermine whelher here is any
indication of impairment. If any such indicati\on exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units {CGUs). Each CGU represents
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal. Value in use is based on the
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
maney and the risks specific to the CGUY (or the asset),

The Company's corporate assets do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of corporate asset, recoverable amount is
determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount, Impairment losses are recognised in
the statement of prolit and loss, Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis

An impairment loss in respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date
whether there is any indication that the loss has derreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised, An impairment loss on goodwill
is not subsequently reversed

g) Employee benefits

i. Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by
the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably,




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

1C. Material accounting policies {continued)
g) Employee benefits (Continued}

ii. Share-based payment transactions
Share-based payment are provided to employees via the Parent Company's Employees Stock Option Plan {*Emcure ESOS 2013")

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees of the Company is recognised as an employee expense, with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards The amount recognised as expense is
based on the estimate of the number of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the
amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the
vesting date.

lii, Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered provident fund
scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in statement of profit or loss in the
periods during which the related services are rendered by employees

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available

iv. Defined benefit plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit
plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation
results is a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefit available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan ('the asset ceiling’) In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits,
consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements,

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest} and the effect of
the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in OCI. The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit
liability {asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-
net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions
and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in statement of profit or loss,

When the benefits of the plan are changed or when plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost' or ‘past
service gain’) or the gain or Inss on curtailment is recognised immediately in stalement uf profit ur luss. The Company recognlses galn and losses on the
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

v. Other long term employee benefit

The Company's liability in respect of other long-term employee benefits (compensated absences) is the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned In return for their service in the current and prior periods, that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any related
assets is deducted. The obligation is measured on the basis of an annual independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit method
Remeasurement gains or losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise,

h) Provisions (other than for employee benefits), Contl Habilitles and contingent assets

A pravision is recngnised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated rellably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provistons are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax-rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.
Expected future operating losses are not provided for.




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

1C. Material accounting policies (continued)

h) Provisions {other than for employee benefits), Contingent liabilities and contingent assets {continued)

i. Contingencies

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigations, assessments, fines, penalties, etc are recognized when it is probable that a liability
has been incurred, and the amount can be estimated reliably

ii. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow
of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless
the possibility of outflow of resources is remote

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However,
contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefit will arise, the asset and related income are
recognized in the period in which the change occurs. A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable

i) Revenue
Sale of goods

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. Consideration is allocated to each performance obligation
specified in the contract. The Company recognises revenue pertaining to each performance obligation when it transfers control over a product to a
customer, which is adjusted for expected refunds, which are estimated based on the historical data, adjusted as necessary.

The consideration can be fixed or variable. Where the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount
of consideration to which the Company will be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to a customer. Variable consideration is
only recognised when it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.

The Company recognises refund liability where the Company receives consideration from a customer and expects to refund some or all of that consideration
to the customer. The refund liability is measured at the amount of consideration received (or receivable) for which the entity does not expect to be entitled
(i.e. amounts ot included in the transaction price)

Sale of services
Rendering of services

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised in statement of profit and loss over the peried of time. The Company is involved in rendering services
related to its products to its customers. If the services under a single arrangement are rendered in different reporting periods, then the consideration is
allucaled on a relative falr value basis between the different services.

Allowance for Sales returns and breakage expiry

When a customer has a right to return the product within a given period, the Company has recognised an allowance for returns. The allowance is measured
equal to the value of the sales expected to return in the future period, Revenue is adjusted for the expected value of the returns and cost of sales are
adjusted for the value of the corresponding goods to be returned.

The Company has an obligation to accept the goods which will expire, The Company has recognised an allowance for the returns due to expiry. The

allowance is measured on the basis of historical trend of explry against the sales occurred in the current and earlier period. Management considers the sales
value for the periods which are equivalent to average general shelf life of products. Revenue is adjusted for the expected value of the returns.

J) Government grants

Government grants are recognised initially as deferred income at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received and the Company
will comply with the condltions associated with the grant; they are then recognised In profit or loss as other operating revenue on a systematic basis. As per
company policy, government grant related operating revenue is recognized on a gross basis and not netted off against the operating expenses, l.e. the
income is presented separately under Note 52 {gross presentation).

Grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred are recognised in profit or loss as ullies operaling revenue on d systematic basls In the perlods
in which such expenses are recognised.

Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, shall be presented in the balance sheet by setting up the grant as deferred

income. The grant set up as deferred income is recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset

AARAZ X\
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GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

1C. Material accounting policies {continued)

k) Leoses
i. The Company as a lessee

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116, Identification of a lease requires significant
judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term {including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate The
Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods cavered by an option to extend the lease if the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to
exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to
terminate a lease, it considers all relevant lacts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the
lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease
The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. [f that rate cannot be readily determined, the
Company uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the
incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole. The lease payments shall include fixed
payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease

The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to
reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance
fixed lease payments

The Company recognises right-ol-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost
of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be
incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use
assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or
useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and
equipment, Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment
loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an fxpenae on a straight line
basis over the lease term

1) Recognition vf inlerest income or expenses
Interest income is recognised using effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of financial instrument to:

- The gross carrying amount of the financial assets; or
- The amortised cost of the financial liability

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-
impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the efective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the
calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis

m) income tax

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly
in equity or in other comprehensive income. Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including judgment on
whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax its, A tax 1t can involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over
extended time periods

I. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss of the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable
in respect of previnus years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates {and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to
realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial staterents {cantinued}
For the year ended March 31, 2024

1C. Material accounting policies (continued)
m) Income tox (cantinued)

i, Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits Deferred tax is
not recognised for:

temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that: is not a business combination; and at the time of the transaction
(i) affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and {ii) does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences and

temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. The existence
of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company
recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient
taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each
reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they refate to income taxes
levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously

n) Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an
asset which necessarlly take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred

o) Financlal guarantee contracts

Financlal guarantee contracts are recognised as a tinancial assets at the time the guarantee is received. The asset is Initially measured at fair value and
subsequently at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with ind AS 36 and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation, where
appropriate

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present value of the difference in net cash flows between the contractual payments under the
debt instrument and the payments that would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for
assuming the obligations. Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables are received for no compensation, the Company has made accounting
policy choice of recognising fair value of such financial guarantee as finance cost.

p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprises cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less, which are subject to an insignlificant risk of changes in value




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

1C. Material accounting policies {continued)
q) Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker

The board of directors of the Company are identified as Chief operating decision maker. Refer note 49 for segment reporting

r) Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the period by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit / {loss) after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the period by the weighted
average number of equity and equivalent dilutive equity shares outstanding during the reporting period, except where the results would be anti-dilutive.

s} Cash flow statement

Cash flow are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows, The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated

t} Research and development

Revenue expenditure on research and development activities is recognized as expense in the period in which it is incurred.

u) Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest million as per the requirement of Schedule lil, unless
otherwise stated

Note 2 - Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards
applicable to the Company.

Note 2.1 Changes In material aceounting policies

The Company adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to Ind AS 1) from 1 April 2023, These amendments did not result in any changes in
the accounting policies or the accounting policy Information disclosed In the financlal statements. The amendments require the disclosure of 'material'
rather than 'significant’ accounting policies. The amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies,
assisting entities to provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy information that users need to understand other information in the financial statements




X
(2P
e - B
ST'¥80°T S6°9L6 L9 SLTLT P6'TT8 01’190 85TT 6"'6ET 6I'EES'T (el0L
90 L 81T - oLe 16 06°8T - - 06°8T S3PIYIA
LEET TES 100 ST 08 E 89'87 o LSE €T'ST Sainpey pue aunuing
1453 vy N 80 59°€ 9L - 0zt we suswdinba 3310
68 7T 0v2 - weL 0E9T T6 8¢ = €L'8 8T°0¢ s1zindwo)
1561 16'S i 87T 234 [da14 E £07 6€°6T uawdinba Suipuey iy
24 144 | v9'0 £ e L 1441 8LL uonej|ejsul |eanp3|3
65766 £6 188 L9 06°atrT 9L SvL TSLLBT 9FTT 0’607 89°6£9'T Asaurew pue jueld
S9TE 6T°9E ] LTTT T0st ¥8'89 E TTET 79°sS Quawasaldw) pjoyasea]
€207 "TE §uEN EL0Z “LE Yoy AURA 3443 40} TTOT T (dY £Z0Z TE Yaumw ZZOZ T AW
=5y L] fesodsig pepaidag ey sy T GORIERY e sy Jusmudinba pue jund ‘Auadosg
IN|eA B0 1N uoRERMdER PaIENWNIY BN|UA XOOG BTUD : EojON
SU)jjL w5y
IN Bunesdde 3Ju3y pue sjewidap yo duipunol moj3q st ssuswdinba 23130 pue AJIUIYIeN 1B TUE(d JO S| 1P uo uoyiea.dap psiey Y
*Auedwo? ayy Aq Aunaas se padpa|d Juswdinba pue jueid ‘Apadosd uo uonEULIOU) 10} 8 10N J3J9Y
16'V15C YT'ETZ'T T0°0 02°9€2 96'9L6 S0'8ZL'E €812 B8L'889'T 0T'T90C 1e10L
-84 201 ] 8T°¢C 81T 0681 . = 06°8T SapIRA
S8 1S oL'L T 6E°C €e's S5 65 L8°0¥ 89'8T Sainixy pue aJnyuing
98 919 = 69T iy 59T 00 w69 194 sjuawdinba 3240
81 11433 . 61’6 wve s = I8¢t 16°8€ siandwod
€L LVT 108 T00 e 16°S vLasT ST'0 Ly'vET we juawidinba Bujjpuey Jiy
1313 68'S - 19T 8TY 3444 - To€e we uonefjesul (EalP3(3
P 19T’ ET'890°T - QT €8T €6 ¥a8 09'677'E L9'TT SLELE'T 25°LL8'T Assumyoew pue jue|d
ov 8T 100 . 100 . '8t - st . Buipyng
19'19 T0°0L = I8°€e 6T'9¢ 89 LET : 8'89 889 su3WAoIdw ployasea]
TOZ 'TE Yaew YEOT TE RN FLETTET] oo "TE YN E202 T |ldy
ey sy siesodsiq uopepaidsg =y s|esodsig uomepy sy awdinba pue qued ‘Auadosy
anjen Hooq 18N unjiEpaidep pate|nuinady WNEA §OOY SS04D) £ 310N

20T ‘TE YNEN PapUs 134 3Yy) 104
{panuguoa) e Y Y3 03 SAION
QLLIAN STYDILNTIVINYVHLOIS YAONNID




pEmaluly qe| Jusludojansp g YaieasEy 1e 20| 120 _

M — 2N [groz [ - | 8197 T - [ = |
: P e . ’ _Ir lejoL | sieah g ueyy aian | SIEAE-C | siedAz-T |  JeshATueqa e | £207 'TE YauEW |
/ N X Fuojiju w5y
= \ ._ = ﬁ * _ = _ - _ ipemalud qe| JuswdoEasp g ylieasay 1e &l (@] _
[ \ jeyoL _ sieah g uey) 1ol | SIBIAE -7 _ sIeshg - T _ JEIA T URYy S5T] _ $Z0Z "TE YUy _

w oyl sy

3npayss P 19puUn sjasse

/
/p

- -~

o ue|d |eUIB1I0 pERA3INS 1509 313U M 530af0ud ou Bie iYL

o 2T O/ ; \
HYe ’ ! Vi
/,H.,.o.n_.”..l._\..\\\ ‘e - 8Tz V15 00 - - 6L

—— N Ui s = : z = papuadsns Ajesodwa) s3alaid
S—t i,H.\\ g 21'9Z +T 92 00 . = 232p uonajdwoa pauue|d |euldiia woly 3NPI3AO $193[04d

——— = . - ssaidoid Ul $193[04d

|esoL SIEFA £ UBL; 210N SIBIA g -2 SIEIAZ - T Je3A T uey; $537 20T “TE YHEW

= - |e10L

papuadsns Aljesodws) spiold
3jep uo3ddwoa pauueld [euiBLI0 WoJ) INPIBAO S3I3(014
ssa.180.1d ul spoafoig

#20Z “T€ YISeN

ielog FIEBA £ URL3 oW SIBIAE -7 SIBSAZ - T JESA T URYY 557

BT

mo|aq se si polsad 3uipodal jo pua je se Suiefe Juawdojaraq Japun $13ssy d|qi3uelu]

Aep uojja|dwos

pauueid |euiSlIc WOl aNPIBAO 3ue yalym s}3foud ou 2se alaLy pue ueld [eurdlI0 papIIING 1507 JIAYM §192(0.1d OU ale Audy]

9T 06€'T 160 217863 80°T69 |eloL
P . papuadsns Ajliessdwa) s193[0.d
9T 06£°T 160 L1'869 80T6S ssa180ud u| s193l0lg
[CICTN SIBIAE - T SIBAAZ-T Je3A T ugyy 5593 €202 TE Yaew
SUOJj uf sy

sb'S8 or'rs et €9°8T B301
- - - - papuadsns Ajliesaduway s13alold

St S8 o 7S 4441 €9 8T ssa1801d uj s3oalolg
12301 SIBBAE-2 s1edhZ2-T 1eaA T ueyy 5537 20T “TE Yaiew

SUD0||[IW U1 sy
mo|aq se si pouad Suiodal yo pua je se Suiade ssaidosd-uj-yiom [eyded

Auedurod ayy Aq Ayunaas se padpa|d ssasdoid-u-yrom jejider) pue juswdinbs pue jued ‘Aadold U UCREULIQJUI JO) 8 AI0N 133y b

“(%05°0 + YD © €202 “T€ Y2JelA} %0S'0 + YIIIA S! pasi|eaidea aq 01 53502 HUIMOIIOQ JO JUNOLIE 3] 3U|WISI3P 0} pasn 3jed uonesijelrdeds ay) '€

(7€ 210U J3524) JeaA Ay Bulinp s1asse Jo 1503 3y] 0] pappe uaaq aney (Uoj|(IW Ty'67 Y 1707 ‘TE Y24BN) UO! 96721 'Sy 01 Jununowe slasse BulAjlenb uo pasijeyded 3501 Saimoulaq Yyl 7

131128} Buisixe jo uoisuedxa ‘syue|d / spaloud

snoriea o3 8ujulerad syasse Jayjo pue uip)ing ‘Asauiyseul pue Jue|d 4o s1s15uad Ajulew (SUOH|IA 9T 06E'T'SY : £Z0Z'TE YILelN) SUOI(|IIN St'S8 'SY JO pua Jeah ayl Je ssasBosd-uijiom [endel ayy T
 pue £ 330U Jo} sajouzoay

8T'9¢ & . 8197 wawdojaaaq Japun $33ssy 3|qiduelul
9T'06E'T sz o £298 0L'9LL S6'669 ssa.goud-ul-jiom [ended
E i JUIWGG[aASP J8pUN Syasse S[qIBuesu]
ST0T TE Yoy : 7202 'T |HdY pue ss9i3oid-ul-yop [eyded
lesy s|esodsta pasfjeyded uolppPY e sy t 310N
Suol|{IW uj ‘sy
. 8T 9¢ = 8197 1uawdojanaq Japun s3assy 2|qiduejuy|
St'S8 670 6 T9T T9LEE ST'06€'T ss31801d-ui-j0m [e3de]
v20Z ‘TE Yo €202 ‘T (Hdy pue ssifoud-ujapop leyded
ey sjesodsia pasyeyide) uopRY e sy ¥ 230N

SuoljjI Ul sy

YZ0Z ‘T€ Y31e|N popua 1eah 3y) 404
{Panunuol) sjuawajess |elaueuly 3y 03 SI0N
Q3LININ STYILLNIIVINYVYHLO18 VAONNID



S, > |i\\
£8'% 0§'21 {e6e L5ED LETT = EST 08°0F [N
i8% 0sL1 EGE L5EL LEEE ST 080z RIEM3IO5
E20T "LE yaew €202 "IE Yauew mad ay3 sof 207 T dy €202 "TE YaaEpy TZOT T [Hdy
e 5y 125y HOjIER oWy i =gy iEsodng UOERY u sy asse BjgRue)
SNjEA OO ION USHEZILOWE PHE WY AN[RA 40O( $504D SaoN
suoljius ul sy
wos ¥57Z 10's 05°LT 9%6°TL = 65705 LETT lejoL
L1'92 100 100 . 8T'9Z - 8192 d uawdof3Asp PNpoid
[raz4 €572 €0'S 0s LT 74 . vz LT aJemyog
P20Z "TE YW FIOT TE YUEW Jeah Ay 104 EZOT 7 jdy ¥ZOZ TE Yauen i : £20Z T 118w
18 5y Je g UoHESfLouY 15y SLE % sjesodsin uDppY =3y SJRSIE FQIEuEU)
anjea yooq 10N UGS Lo pIemWNIGY SNjEA }0O0g 53045 § 910N

suoyj[ur uy sy

¥Z0Z ‘TE Y21 Papud JEAA 3y Jog

[ 4 23 03 SAON

Q3LIWN STVOLLNIIVINEYHGOIE YAONNID




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Note &6 : Leases

Lease contracts entered by the Company majorly pertains for Land & buildings taken on lease to conduct its business in the ordinary

course. Information about leases for which the company is lessee is presented as below:

Right-Of -Use Of Asset

Rs. in millions

Particulars Land Properties Plant & Machlinery Total
Balance as at April 1,2022 181.24 381.91 238.47 801.62
Additions for the year - 61.21 16,18 77.39
Deletions for leases terminated (21.04) : (21.04)
Depreciation charge for the year (1.91) {113 05) {61.39) {176.35)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 179.33 309.03 193.26 681.62
Additions for the year - . E -
Deletions for leases terminated (Refer Note below) (177 44) - (177.44)
Depreciation charge for the year {1.89) {108.39}) (61.17) {171.45)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 0.00 200.64 132.09 332.73

Lease Liabilities

Rs. In millions

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance as at the beginning of the year 55314 658.74
Additions for the year - 72.37
Interest on lease liabilities 40.88 56.15
Deletions for leases terminated . (23.75)
Repayment of lease liabilities {207.19) (210,37)
Balance as at the end of the year 386.83 553.14
Current 175.04 166.31
Non-current 211.79 386.83
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows- Rs. In millions
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Less than one year 200.36 207,19
One to five years 21224 409,87
More than five years 27.08 29,81
Total undiscounted lease liabilitles as at year end 439.68 646.87
Amount recognised In statement of Profit or Loss Rs. in milllons
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest on lease liabilities 40.88 56.15
Depreciation on right of use assets 171.45 176.35
Total 212.33 232.50
A { ised In st of cash flow
Cash flow from financing activities s, In milllons
|- Repayinent of lease lsbilit (207.19]] 1210.37]

Note: During the vear, company has sold its leasehald land located at Sanand tn its halding rampany Porsuant to this, halance lying in the
ROU asset & liabilities are presented as deletions & resultant gain is recognised under Note 28 Other income




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

fs. In millions

Note 7

Non current investments

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Investment in equity instruments
Unguoted (Valued at cost unless otherwise stated)
Investments in Emcure Brasil Farmaceutica Ltda
1 {March 31, 2023 : 1), fully paid equity shares of Real 1 each

Total - Aggregate of unquoted investments

* Value below Rs. 0.005 Million

Rs. in millions

Note 8

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Other non-current financlal assets
Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise specified:
Term deposits with banks for remaining maturity period more than 12 months {refer note below) 4.40 1.68
Security deposits 105.17 85,97
Total 109.57 87.65

Note : Held as lien by bank for issuing performance bank guarantees. (Refer Note 48)

Rs. in millions

Note 9
o March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Other non-current assets
Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise specified:
Capital advances 686 67.46
Prepaid expenses 288
Total 6.86 70.34
Rs. in millions
» 10
- March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Inventories
Raw materials [Includes in transit Rs. 12.97 millions (March 31, 2023 : Rs. 0.08 millions)] 557.07 61031
Packing materials [Includes in transit Rs. Nil millions {March 31, 2023 : Rs. 0.88 millions)] 207.52 203.27
Work-in-progress 34197 295.16
Finished goods 133.85 115.25
Tiaded goods [Includes In transit Rs. 0,78 millllons (March 31, 2023 : Rs. Nil millions})) 102 49 47.34
Stores and Spares [Includes in transit Rs. Nil millions (March 31, 2023 : Rs. 11.83 millions)] 136.72 126.31
Total 1,479.62 1,397.64

Amounts recognised In statement of profit and loss

1. Write-downs of inventories during the year amounted to Rs. 137.78 millions (March 31, 2023 : Rs, 2.44 millions). These were recognised as an expense during the year and included in cost

of materials consumed or changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods in statement of praofit and loss.
2. Refer Note 48 for information on Inventories pledged as security by the Company.

Rs. in millions

Note1l March 31,2024 | Marsh 31, 2023
Trede receivables

Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 620.55 610,54

Disputed receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk 1.07 17.08

621.62 628.02

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (25.81) (17.08)

Total 595.81 610,94

Of the above, trade rec

Rs. in millions

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Total trade receivables from related parties {Refer note 44)

83,57 126.74
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - -
Net trade receivables 83.57 126,74
Breakup of security details and ageing schedule
Rs. in millions
March 31, 2024 Not due Less than| 6months| 1-2years | 2-3vyears More than Total
6 manths -1vyear 3 years
Undisputed receivables - considered good 414.83 131,70 37.63 1141 023 0.01 595.81
Undisputed receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk - E 2474 - 24.74
Nisputed receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk 107 1.07
Total 414,83 121,70 37.63 11.41 24.97 1.08 621.62
Less: Loss allowance {25.81)
Total 414,83 131,70 37.63 11,41 24,97 1.08 595.81




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Breakup of security details and ageing schedule

Rs. in millions

March 31, 2023 Not due Less thaj 6months| 1-2years | 2-3years | More than 3 years Total
6 months -1 year
Undisputed receivables - considered good 484.09 111.15 14 38 092 0.02 038 610,94
Undisputed receivables - credit impaired - 7.87 433 080 1.00 201 16.01
Disputed receivables - credit impaired - - 1.07 1.07
Total 484.09 119.02 18.71 1.72 1.02 3.46 628.02
Less: Loss allowance {17 08)
Total 484.09 119.02 1871 1.72 1.02 3.46 610.94

Refer Note 48 for information on trade receivables pledged as security by the company
The Company's exposure to credit and currency risk, and loss allowances retated to trade receivables are disclosed in note 40

Rs. in millions

flote2 ) March 31,2024 | March 31,2023
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 001 0.01
Balances with bank 100.92 72.88
Total 100.93 72.89
Refer Note 48 for information on cash and cash equivalents pledged as security by the company
Rs. in millions
fotelLs March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise specified
Term deposits with banks for initial maturity more than 3 months but remaning maturity of less than 12 months (Refer note below) 32,55 25.42
Interest accrued on deposits with bank 1.34 1.14
Tota! 33.89 26.56
Note: Term deposits are held as lien by bank for Non Fund Based Credit Limits (which Includes Letter of Credit & Bank Guarantees) (Refer Note 48)
Rs.in millions
eiCE March31,2024 | March 31,2023
Other current flnanclal assets
Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise specified
interest accrued on deposits with others = 0.02
Government grant receivables 197.47 244.90
Other receivable 1381 -
Total 211.28 244,92 |
Rs. In milllons
Dot March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Other current assets i
Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise specified
Advances for supply of goods and services 41,25 21.81
Balances with government authorities 289,01 526.95
Advance to employees 5.46 338
Prepaid expenses 6.39 16.10
Total 342,11 568.24




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Rs. in millions

Note 16 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Share capital Nos Amount Nos Amount
Authorised
Equity share of Rs. 10 each {March 31, 2023 : Rs. 10 each) 1,00,00,000 10000 1,00,00,000 100.00
Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares of Rs. 10 5,50,00,000 550.00 5,50,00,000 550.00
each (March 31, 2023: Rs. 10 each}
Total 6,50,00,000 650.00 6,50,00,000 650.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
Equity share of Rs 10 each {March 31,2023 : Rs. 10 each) 55,11,365 5511 55,11,365 5511
Total 55,11,365 55.11 55,11,365 55.11
Reconciliation of the number of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Rs. in millions
| Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Nos Value Nos Value
Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the 55,11,365 55.11 55,11,365 55.11
year
No. of shares % of No. of shares % of
Share held by the Holding Company held Sharehalding held Shareholding
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Equity Shares
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited, the Holding Company 48,47,500 87.95% 48,47,500 87 95%
No. of shares % of No, of shares % of
Shareholders Holding shares more than 5% held Shareholdi held Shareholding
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Equlty Shares
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited, the Holding Company 48,47,500 87.95% 48,47,500 87.95%
Dr. Sanjay Singh 6,61,365 12 00% 6,61,365 12.00%
Total 55,08,865 89.95%| 55,08,865 99.95%
No. of shares % of No.ofshares | % of
Shates held by promoters at the end of the year held sharehaldi hetd “Shareholding
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 48,47,500 I 87.95% 48,47,500 87.95%
Total 48.,47,500 I 87.95% 48,47,500 87.95%

Rights, preferences and resttictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs,10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share
held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all

preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Information regarding shares in the last five years

No shares were issued tor conslderation other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the year ended March 31,
2024, Further the company has not undertaken any buy back of shares during the period of five years inmediately preceding the year ended

March 31, 2024




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Ra. in mill

Note 1

i March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Other equity
Retained earnings
Balance as at the beginning of the year 1,564 90 1,257.32
Profit for the year 32253 307.10
Items of other comprehensive income recognlsed directly in retained earnings
Remeasurements of defined benefit plan, net of tax (0.44) 0.48
Balance as at the end of the year 1,BR6,99 1,564.90
Capital Redemption Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year 55000 550,00
Additions during the year = -
Balance as at the end of the year 550,00 S50.00
Equity contribution from Holding Company
Balance as at the beginning of the year 1203 1054
Issue of share options of Holding Company to employees of the company 0.89 149
Balance as at the end of the year 12,92 12.03
Total 2,449.91 2,126.93

Nature and purpose of other reserves

Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits earned till date, less any transfers to other reserves and dividends distributed

Equity contrlbution from Holding Company
Equity contribution from Holding Company in the nature of employee stock option issued to employees.

Capital redemptlon reserve
Capital redemption reserve has been created on redemption of optionally convertible preference shares and can be used for issuing fully
paid bonus shares as per the Companies Act, 2013




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Rs. in millions

Note 18
Non-current borrowings

Mareh 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Secured
Term loans:
Loan from banks 274.02 399.06
Vehicle loans 4.61 636
Total secured 278.63 405 42
Unsecured
Loan from others 5235 6903
Total unsecured 52.35 69.03
Less: Current maturities of term loans {Refer note 22) (143.45) {143.45)
Less: Current maturities of vehicle loans {Refer note 22} (1.88) (1.75)
Less: Transaction cost attributable to the borrowings (2 29) (3.20)
Total 183.36 326.05
' a} Statement of principal terms of secured term loans outstanding as on March 31, 2024* ;
Nature of facility Repayment terms Rate of interest % (per Currency Amaount Security
annum) autstanding
[Rs. In millions)
Term Loan Monthly instalments starting from October First Charge over movable
2022 and ending on September 2026 of Rs fixed assets of the company
10.42 million each Including movable fixed
assets located at:
1. BTS 2 Bullding, Chrysalis
Enclave, Block No.2, Plot
No.2, International Biotech
1Y MCLR + 0.50% INR 27402 Park, Phase-lI, MIDC
Hinjewadi, Pune-411057.
2. Plot No, P-1, Rajiv Gandhi
Infotech Park, Phase II,
MIDC  HinJewadi- Pune-
411057,
Vehicle loans Monthly instalments starting from August Vehicles for which loan is
o 61
2021 and ending on July 2026 7.25% INR 4 taken
Total 278.63

b) Terms of repayment for unsecured borrowlngs outstanding as on March 31, 2024

Natuce of Facility

Repayment Terms Rate of interest Currency Amount
% (per annum) outstanding
{Rs: In Milllons)
Loan, under New Millennlum
Indian  Technology Ieadership|10 yearly instalments starting from September 1, 2017 3% INR 52.35
Iritiative
Total 52.35
a) Statement of principal terms of secured term loans outstanding as on March 31, 2023* :
Nature of facility | Repaymant terms Rate of interest % (per Currency Amount Security
annum) autstanding
(Rs. in milllons)
Term Loan Monthly Instalments starting from October| First pari passu charge over
2022 and ending on September 2026 of Rs| all the movable assets of|
10.42 million each LYMCLR +0.50% INR b the company to be shared
with EXIM Bank
Vehicle loans Monthly instaliments starting from August] 2.25% INR 6.36 Vehicles for which loan Is
2021 and ending on July 2026 taken
Total 405.42
b) Terms of repay for ed borrowlngs out {ing as on March 31, 2023
Mature of Facility Rate of interest Currency Amount
|[Repayment Terms % (per annum) outstanding
(Rs. in Millions)
Loan under New Millennium
Indian Technology Leadership|10 yearly installments starting from September 1, 2017 3% INR 69.03
Iriitistive
Total 69,03

* For the assets pledged against secured borrowlings, Refer Note 48




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Rs. in millions

Current borrowings

JNotel1o March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Other non-current financial liabilities
Allowance for sales returns for expired goods (refer note 24) 17.44 13.78
Total 17.44 13.78
Rs. in millions
Note2y March31,2024 | March 31,2023
Non-current Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences 41.42 40.85
Taotal 41.42 40.85
Rs. in millions
L] ) March 31,2024 | March31,2023
Other non-current liabilities
Deferred government grant (refer note 43 and 52} 162.05 16231
Total 162.05 162.31
Rs. in millions
Note 22

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Secured
Cash credit facilities repayable on demand from banks 161.47 660.63
Working capital loans from banks 1,260.00 779.00
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 7.94 4,17
Less: Transaction cost attributable to the borrowings (2.78) (2,29}
1,426.63 1,441,51
Current Maturities of long term borrowings
Current matwities of vehidle luans (Refer nute 18) 1.88 1.75
Current maturities of term loans {Refer note 18) 143.45 143.45
Total 1,571.96 1,586.71

1) Cash credit facilities repayable on demand from banks and carry interest in the range of 9.20% to 9.65%
2) Working capital loans from banks are secured by hypothecation of inventories, trade receivables and current assets
3) Information about the Company's exposure to interest rate and liquidity risks is included in Note 40
4) The working capital facilities are renewable within a year from date of sanction/previous renewal and carry interest in the range of 8 40% to 9.65%

Rs. in millions

Note 23 March 31,2024 | March31,2023
Trade payables g
Payables to related parties (Refer note 44) 319 80 636.18
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer note 51) 7.16 942
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro & small enterprises 34322 556.27
Total 670.18 1,201.87

a) All trade payable are current,

b) The Company's exposui e Lu Lutiency and liquidity risks relaled to trade payables Is disclosed In note 40.

Trade payable ageing as at end of reporting period is as below

Rs. in millions

March 31, 2024 Unb|l|_ed| Less than| 1-2years| 2-3years| More than 3 years| Tatal
dueg| 1 year
MSME 0.01 7.16 717
Others 128,28 507.79 1114 14,24 156 663.01
Disputed dues - MSME - - -
Disputed dues - Others E = -
Total 128.29 514.95 11.14 14.24 1.56 670.18
March 31, 2023 Unbﬂ Less than| 1-2years| 2-3years| More than 3 years Total
dues 1 yisar
MSME 0.01 9.41 9.42
Others 70.54 1,101.92 18.35 0.01 163 1,192.45
Disputed dues - MSME 2 F
Disputed dues - Others = .
Total 70.55 1,111.33 18.35 0.0 1.63 1,201.87




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

e in millions

Note 24
Other current financial liabilities

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Employee benefits payable 11915 100,36

Creditors for capital assets 16,92 673

Allowance for sales returns for expired goods {refer note b below) 12.38 16.00

Other liabilities 13.67 EX
Total 162.12 146.18
Note :

a) The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to above financlal liabilitles is disclosed in Note 40,

b) Allowance for anticipated sales returns subsequent to sales

- Allowance has been made towards probable return of goods from customers, as per indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 115 estimated by management based

on past trends.

R, in millions
[Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Beginning of the year 29.82 282
Provisions made during 1he year 128.48 89,10
Frovisions utilised during the year (128.44) [92.r0)
At the end of the year {non-current and current) 29.82 29.82
Rs. in millions
e March 33,2024 | March 31, 2023
Current p
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences 16.69 12.61
Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 45) 17.14 1155
Total | 24.16
. Rs. in millians
Note 2&
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Other current liabilities Y Y.
Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted at source 55,47 23.88
Advances from customers 2.32 30.73
Deferred government grant {refer note 43 and 52) 1032 10.32
Total 62.41 64,02




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Rs. in millions

Note 27

from operations*

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Sale of products

3,626.20 3,351.36
Sale of services 15175 27.09
Other operating revenues
Export incentives 6.30 7.42
Scrap Sales 0.30 0.41
Government Grant (Refer Note 52) 436.27 343.87
Total 4,220.82 3,730.15
*“Refer note 47 for details of revenue from contract with customers.
Rs. in millions
Nawnan March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Other incomin
Interest income under the effective interest method on:

Interest income from banks and others 236 135
Miscellaneous income 7.54 9.98
Gains on foreign exchange fluctuation (net) 7.76 22.44
Profit on sale of fixed asset 16.30 0.28

Total 33.96 34.05




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Rs. in millions

Nore2o } March 41, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cost of med
A: Raw material consumed
Opening inventory 610.31 60401
Add : Purchases (net) 336.74 284 80
947 05 888 81
Less: Closing inventory 557.07 61031
Cost of raw materials consumed 38998 278.50
B: Packing material consumed
Opening inventory 203.27 107.30
Add : Purchases {net) 194.01 285.87
397.28 393.17
Less: Closing inventory 207.52 20327
Cost of packing materials consumed 189.76 189.90
Total 579.74 468.40
Rs. in milllons
Nete 30
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Changes in | y of finished goods, work-In-progress and traded goods * a g
Opening inventory
Finlshed goods 115.25 136.28
Work-in-process 295.16 314.47
Traded goods 47.34 7795
457.75 52870
Less: Closing Inventory
Finished goods 133.85 11525
Work-in-process 34197 295.16
Traded goods 102.49 47.34
578.31 457.75
Increase In Inventorles of finished goods, work-In-| rogress and traded goods {120.56) 70.95
Rs. In mllllons

Note 31
Employee benefit expenses

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Salaries, wages and bonus 663.15 513.99
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 45) 40.52 32.38
Employee share-based payment expenses (refer note 46) 0.89 149
Gratuity {refer note 45) 15.62 14,02
Staff welfare expenses 44.55 43.44
Total 764.73 605.32




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financlal statements {continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Rs. In mllllons
jlateas March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Other
Processing charges 98.80 4013
Factory consumables 431.59 480.38
Power and fuel 206.71 168 47
Insurance 23.26 2549
Repairs and maintenance 83.62 7115
Rates and taxes 10.58 11.46
Frelght and forwarding expenses 34.31 38.29
Advertisement & pramotional materials 103.19 6167
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle expenses 63.72 44.59
Commisslon on sales 82,63 47.59
Printing, stationery, postage and telephone expenses 7.42 6.43
Legal and professional fees (refer note {a) below) 168.22 150.17
Expenditure on Corporate social responsibility (refer note 53) 9.91 10.25
Contractual services 58.45 4852
Payment to auditors (refer note (b} below) 0.97 091
Commission to non-executive directors 325 305
Directors sitting fees 054 0.56
Provision for doubtful debts 8.73 215
Bad debts written off 031 4.42
Clinical trials 79.34 154 68
Miscellaneous expenses 24,94 19.99
Total 1,501.49 1,390.35
Note:

{a) Includes consultancy fees paid in relation to HDT matter amounting to Rs. 57.42 Millions {March 31, 2023: Rs. 58.23)

{b) Payment to auditors

As. in millions

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Audit fees 0.86 0.86
Other services T r
Out of pocket expenses 0.11 0.05

Total 0.97 0.91
Rs. In millions
Note 33
rch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation and amortization exp A ! %

Depreciation on property, plant and equlpment 236.24 171.75

Amortisation of intangible asset 5.04 3.93

Depreciation on right-of-use assets 171.45 176.35

Total 412,73 352.03
Rs. In millians

ey March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Finance cost

Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities not at falr value through profit or loss

Interest on fong-term borrowIngs measured at amortised cost 12,78 0.54

Interest on short-term borrowings measured at amortised cost 124.83 108.04

Other borrowlIng costs 34.98 36.96

Interest accrued on lease liabillty 40.88 56.15

Interest on shortfall of advance tax 2.66 5.44

Total 216.13 207.13




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Rs. in millions

pEEL March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Tax expenses
Current tax expenses
Current tax on profits for the year 162 54 8439
Change in estimate related to prior year taxes 2.78 {0.49)
Total current tax expense 165.32 83.90
Deferred tax
Originating and reversal of temporary differences 4071 46.67
Change in estimate related to prior years {8.33) (5.98)
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) 32,38 40.69
Total tax expenses 197.70 124.59

Rs. in milllons

Tax {{exp ) r Ised In OC! March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
R urements of post-employment benefit obligations 023 (0.20)
Total tax expense 0.23 {0.20)
Rs. In millions
R iliation of tax and the a ing profit multiplied by India's tax March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit before income tax 520.23 431.69
Tax using Company's domestic tax rate of 34.944% (March 31, 2023 : 29,12%) 34.94% 181,79 29.12% 125.71
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible / (taxable) in calculating taxable
Non deductible expenses 0.94% 4.90 1.24% 534
Change in recognised deductible temprorary difference -1.60% (8.33) -138% {5.97)
Change in tax rate 3.18% 16.56 -
Change in estimate related to prior years 0.53% 2.78 -0.11% (0.49)
Effective tax rate 38.01% 197.70 28 B7% 124.59
p— —
\ AR A
QuARMg




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the linancial stalements {conlinued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

_Rs, o miftiony

Jeoleds = March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Deferred tax avsets/{iobifities] - nat
Deferred 1ax assets on
Allowance for doubtful debts - trade receivables 902 497
Provision - employee henefit 2851 1895
Unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses
Minimum allernale lax credit entitlement 99 48 17193
Security deposits 425 544
Lease Liability 13518 16107
Deferred government grant 2038 17 06
Total deforred tax Gssats 296.82 379.42
Deferred tax liabilities on
Property, plant and equipment 177 60 141 50
Intangible assets 1739 116
Borrowings 101 135
Right to use asset 116 27 146 27
Total deferred tax liabilities 312.27 290.28
Deferred tax assets/{liabilitles] - net {15.45] 89.14
Significant estimates
In the of the alternate tax (MAT) credit entitlements, management has assessed the utlisation of the MAT credit entitl The ultimate utili of

the MAT credit is dependenl upan the generalion of future taxable income greater than the book profil camputed as per the pravisions of Income Tax Act, 1961, belore expiry of the
credit period over which the MAT credit can be utilised Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning
strategy in making the assessment. Based an the historical details of the taxable income, book prolit and projections of future taxable income over the periods in which the MAT credit
is available, management believes that the Company will be able to realise / utilise the MAT credit. The amount of the MAT credit is considered realisable as at the reporting date,
hawever, the utilisation could be reduced in the near term if the future taxable income undergoes any change as compared to the estimates made by the management as at reporting

dale

Rs. In millions

Movement of deferrod tav ausets / labilities Balance of Balance of Transferred to | Transferred to MAT credit | Balance of deferred | Balance of Deferred
deferved tax deferred tax statement of other utitised tax asset as at tax liability as at
asset as at April | liabllity asat | profitand loss | comprehensive March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
1,2023 April 1, 2023 Income

Allowance far doubtful debts - trade 4.97 - 4.05 502

receivables

Provision - employee benefit 1B 95 533 0.23 28,51

Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement 17193 (72.45) 99.48

Intangible assets (1.16) {16.23) (17.39)

Lease Liabllity l6lu/ {2589) 1351¥

Property, plant and equipment (141 50) {36,10) - {177 60)

Deferred government grant 17.06 332 2038

Security deposits 5.44 - (1.19) 425 -

Borrowings {1.3s) 033 (1.02)

Right to use asset (146.27) 30.00 {116.27]

___Total 379.42 {290.28} (32,38) 023 {72.45)] 296.82 (312.28)]

. in milllans
Movement of deferred tax assets f llabilities Balanee of Balance of Transferred to | Transferved to MAT credit Balance of deferred | Balance of Defarred
deferred taw deferred tax statement of ather ulilised tax asset as at tax llabllity as at
astet @53t April | Nability as a1 profit and loss | comprehensive March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
1,022 April1,2022 income

Altowance for doubtful debts - trade 434 0.63 4.97

receivables

Provision - employee benetit 2223 {3.08) {020) - 18 95

Mini; | tax credit | 17838 {6.45) 17193

Intangible assets - {176} 0.60 . (1.16)

Lease Liability 191.83 (30.76) 161.07

Praperly, plant and equipment - (128.92) (12.58) . (141.50)

Delerred government grant 47.11 . (30.05) 17.06 -

Security deposits 5,88 - {0.44) 544

Barrowings {1.95) -

Right to use asset ] 2 . . F

Total 449,77 (40.64) 0.20) .45} | 31942

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

henefil therefram

Rs. In mllllons

Farticulars

March 31, 2024

Grass amount
Deductible temporary differences

March 31, 2023

Deferred tax assets have not recognised in respect of the following itlems, because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the company can use the

Tax losces

Tatal 4863 -

Unrecognised tax effect

Deductible temporary differences

Tax losses 11,33

Tatal 1133
Tanlosees for which no deférred tax asset was recognised expire a3 follaws
Particulars = March 31, 2074| March 31, 2033
Expire

Expiry dale : 2031-2032 48 63
Never Expire

Total 48.63

s in millions

L N March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Current tax / - {net)

Current tax assets (net of provision) 0.10 0.10

Current tax liabilities {net of advance tax) (45.61) (53,38}
Total [net of advance tax) 145.51) {53.28)




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financlal statements {continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 38 : Earnings per share

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Basic earnings per share

A Praofit after tax attributable to equity shareholders (Rs in millions) 322,53 307.10
B. Weighted average number of equity shares {(nos.) 55,11,365 55,11,365
Basls earning per share (Rs.) (A/B) 58.52 55.72
Diluted earnings per share

C. Adjusted net profit for the year (Rs. in millions} 32253 30710
Weighted average number of shares outstanding {nos ) 55,11,365 55,11,365
D. Weighted average number of equity share (diluted} for the year (nos.) 55,11,365 55,11,365
Diluted earnings per share {Rs. )} { C/D ) 58.52 55.72
Face value per share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00
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GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 39 : Capital management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to
- Safeguard its ability to continue as a going coneern, so that it can continue to provide returns to shareholder's and benefits for other stakeholder's, and

- Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholder's, return capital to shareholder's or
issue new shares

Generally consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:
Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalent's)
divided by
Total equity {as shown in the balance sheet)

The Company's strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio less than 1.75x. The gearing ratio at year end is as follows:

Rs. in millions

Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Net Debt 1,766.50 1,839.87
Equity attributable to owners of Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Limited 2,505 02 2,182 04
Net Debt to Equity ratio 0.71 084

Note 40 : Financlal risk management

The Company is exposed to a variety of financial risks which results from the Company’s operating and investing activities. The Company's risk management is
carried out by central treasury department in under guidance of the board of directors and the core management team of the Company, and it focuses on
actively ensuring the minimal impact of Company's financial position.

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk in the financial statements

Risk Exposure arlsing fram |Measurement Management
Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade Aging analysis Diversification of bank deposits, credit
receivables, financial assets measured at  |Credit ratings limits and letters of credit

amottised cost

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other financial liabilities  |Rolling cash flow forecasts Availability of committed credit lines
and borrowing facilities

Market risk - foreign exchange Future commetcial bansaclions Cash flow lorecasting Effective management of foreign
Sensitivity analysis exchange outflow and inflow
Recognised financial assets and liabilities
not denominated in Indian rupee (Rs.)

Market risk - interest rate Borrowings at variable rates Sensitivity analysis Ongoing review of existing borrowing
rates and seeking for new facilities at
lower rate

Credlt risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Company's receivables from customers and other financial assets. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit
limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness ot customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business, he
Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables.

Other financial assets that are potentially subject to credit risk consists of cash equivalents, inter corporate loans and deposits.

Further, the Company also recognises loss allowance by using a provision matrix based on historical credit loss experience wherein fixed provision rates are
defined for each financial asset which is past due / not due, The Company depending on the diversity of its asset base, uses appropriate groupings if the
histerical credit loss experience shows significant different loss patterns for different customer segments / financial assets,

Also, the Company limits its exposure to credit risk from receivables by establishing a maximum payment period for customers.
The Company considers the recoverability from financial assets on regular intervals so that such financial assets are received within the due dates,

The Company has exposure to credit risk which is limited to carrying amount of financial assets recognised at the date of Balance sheet.




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 40 : Financial risk management {continued)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are usually due within 7-180 days. Generally, and by practice significant domestic customers enjoy a credit period of approximately 7-45
days and for export customers, the credit period ranges from 30 to 180 days. The receivables are not interest bearing, which is the normal industry practice
All trade receivables are subject to credit risk exposure except for receivables from government agencies and related parties. However, the Company does not
identify specific concentration of eredit risk with regard to trade receivables, as the amounts recognized represent a targe number of receivables from various
customers. Further, majority of the receivables pertains to receivables from Subsidiaries, wherein the concentration of credit risk is considered to be low
Certain receivables are also backed by letter of credit from the banks, resulting into negligible credit risk in recovery of such receivables.

The Company uses a provision matrix (simplified approach} to measure the expected credit loss of trade receivables and other linancial assets measured at
amortised cost,

Year ended March 31, 2024:
Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach
Rs. in millions

Ageing Not Due 0-90days | 91-180 days |181-270 days past|271-360 days past|] More than 361 Total

past dues past dues dues dues days past dues
Gross carrying amount 421.63 113.79 23.40 26.00 16.67 2013 62162
Expected loss rate {includes -1.62% -2.73% -10.13% -17.31% -3,18% -42.13% -4.15%
interest as well as credit loss)
Expected credit losses (loss (6.82) (311) (2.37) (4.50) {053) (8.48) {25.81)
allowance provision)
Carrying amount of trade 414.81 110.68 21.03 21,50 16.14 11.65 595.81
receivables (net of loss
allowance)

Year ended March 31, 2023:
Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach
Rs. in millions

Agelng Nat Dus 0-90days | 91-180 days |181-270 days past|271-360 days past| More than 361 Tatal

past dues past dues dues dues days past dues
Gross carrying amount 484.09 91.42 27.83 16.57 2.05 6.06 628.02
Expected loss rate (includes -1.14%, -1.66% -2.87% -21.73% -36.10% -80.53% 2.72%
interest as well as credit loss)
Expected credit losses {loss {5.54) (1.52) (0.80) (3.60) {0.74) (4.88) (17.08)
allowance provision)
Carrying amount of trade 478.55 89.90 27.03 12,97 131 118 610.54
receivables {net of loss
allowance)

During the period, the Company made write-offs of trade receivables amounting to Rs. 0,31 millions {March 31, 2023 : Rs. 4 42 millions}
There are no financial assets which have been written off during the year which are subject to enforcement activity,

Reconclliation of loss allowance provision — Trade recelvahl

Particulars Re. In millians

Loss allowance on Aprll 1, 2022 14.93

Amounts written off (4.42)
Net remeasurement of loss allowances 6.57
Loss allowance on March 31, 2023 17.08
Amounts written off (0.31)
Net remeasurement of loss allowances 9.04
Loss allowance on March 31, 2024 25.81

Cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks:
With respect to the cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks, the concentration of credit risk is negligible as these are kept with the banks with very
high credit worthiness
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GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements {continued}
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 40 : Financial risk management {continued)
Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and availability of funds through adequate amount of committed credit facility to meet the
commitments arising out of financial liabilities Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business, Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining
availability under committed credit lines. In addition, the Company's liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of
liquid assets necessary to meet future requirements, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against debt covenants and maintaining debt financing plans
and ensuring compliance with regulatory requirements

The Company manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debt payments as well as cash requirement for day-to-day business. Liquidity
needs are maonitored regularly as well as on the basis of a 30-day cash flow projection. Long-term liquidity needs for a period from 180 to 360 days period are
identified and reviewed at regular intervals

The Company maintains cash and marketable securities to meet its liquidity requirements. Funding in regards to Short-term liquidity needs is additionally
secured by committed credit facilities of Rs. 1,550 million,

i) Financing arrangements
The Company has access to undrawn borrowing facilities including overdraft facility at the end of the reporting period.

The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice subject to the continuance of satisfactory
credit ratings.

i) Maturities of financlal liabilities

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant

Rs.in millions

Contractual maturities of financial Habilities within 1 year 1to 2 years Mare than 2 years Tatal
March 31, 2024
Trade payable 67018 . - 670.18
Short term borrowings 1,426.63 = = 1,426.63
Long term Borrowings 143.03 143,58 42.08 328.69
Lease Liabilities 200.36 169.78 69.54 439.68
Other financial liabilities 157.68 - - 157.68
Total 2,597.88 313.36 111.62 3,022.86
March 31, 2023
Trade payable 1,201.87 - - 1,201.87
Short term borrowings 1,441.51 - - 1,441.51
Long term Borrowings 142.55 143.03 185.67 471.25
Lease Liabilities 207.19 200.36 239.32 646.87
Other financial liabilities 134,31 134.31

Total 3,127.43 343.39 424.93 3,895.81
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GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 40 : Financial risk management {continued)

) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the Company's income or the value of it's
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,
while optimising the return

Foreign currency risk
The Company operates majorly in local currency wherein majority of its purchases and sales & services are done in local currencies with minimal exposure to
foreign currency risk. Foreign currency denominated financial assets and liabilities expressed in Rs. as at the closing are as follows:

Foreign currency risk exposure:

Rs. in millions

Partlcul ¢ March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
u urren

e HRS05] Forelgn Currency | Local Currency | Foreign Currency | Local Currency

Financial assets

Trade receivables uso 325 271.05 241 197.87
AED 012 272 = -
Euro 001 090 0.64 56.78

Net exposure to foreign currency risk {assets) 274.67 254.65

Financial liabilities

Trade Payable Euro 0.26 2340 0.15 1308
AUD E 000 0.04
SGD - E 003 188
usD 1.25 104.25 110 90.03
GBP 0.08 842 004 384

Net exposure to foreign currency risk {liabilities) 136.07 108.87

* Foreign currency of insignificant amount

Sensitivity analysis:

Rs. in millians

Particulars

Impact on prof

t before tax

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

USD sensitivity
Rs./USD-Increase by 4% {March 31, 2023 -4%)*
Rs./USD-Decrease by 4% (March 31, 2023 -4%)*

6.67
{6.67)

431
(4.31)

* Holding all other variablis constant

Interest rate risk exposure

The Company's main interest rate risk arises from borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to interest rate risk, During March 31, 2024 and
March 31, 2023, the Company's borrowings at variable rate were in INR.

) Interest rate risk exposure
The Company's interest rate risk arises from borrowings, Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Company to interest rate risk, Borrowings issued at
fixed rates expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk.
As a part of Company's interest risk management policy, treasury department closely tracks the base interest rate movements on regular basis. Based on
regular review, management assesses the need to enter into interest rate swaps, contracts to hedge foreign currency risk. Management reviews the future
movement in base rate against different factors such as overall micro and macra economic factors, liquidity in the system, expected spending cycle. Further on
regular basis management assess the possibility of entering into new facilities which would reduce the future finance cost which helps management to
mitigate the risk related to interest rate movement
All the borrowing except vehicle loan are at floating rate, Refer note 18

Sensitivity:

The Company's policy is to minimize interest rate cash flow risk exposures on borrowing. The local currency loans are linked to Bank Base Rate/ Marginal Cost
of Funds Based Lending {(MCLR).

Rs. in millions

Impact on prolit before tax
Particulars Liuz
March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Interest rates — increase by 25 basis points (25 bps) ** {4.38) (4.79)
Interest rates — decrease by 25 basis points {25 bps) ** 438 479

* Amount is not significant
** Holding all other variables constant

Further, there are certain Rupee loans which have fixed interest rates, accordingly, interest sensitivity is not carried on these loans.

The bank deposits are placed on fixed rate of interest of approximately 4,75% to 6.50% (March 31, 2023: 2.5% to 7%). As the interest rate does not vary unless
such deposits are withdrawn and renewed, sensitivity analysis is not performed




-123h 3y3 BuLINp S[ana| Aue UIBMIa] SIBJSURL) OU Ble 3I3Y|

anjen Jiey 4o uonewixoldde ajqeunseal e ase sjunowe ButAlied 113y}

e1oUBUY PUE S135SE [BI3UBUIY 19410 USOdIP AJLIND3S ‘SUBQ Y3IM SHSOdp W31 ‘SjUB(EAIND3 4Sed pue Ysed ‘$3|qeAIZ 23] 3PeJ) SB YONS SIUBLINASUL [BIDUBUY 10} 3N|eA Jig} BY) pasO[IsIp Jou sey Auecwon 3yl ,

= = = ££°£78°€ ELLT8E 1qel| |EIDUEUL) [E30]
: = ETEET ETEET 12ueul J2Yl0
YT €SS v1T'ess qe] 9sea
' * * £L92 €4°9C sjasse |ejided 1oy 510}Ipald
: = = L8T0Z'T £8T02T sajqeAed apes|
: = = TS TH'T TSTYY'T $8uIM0.10q JUBLNT]
= > . STTLY STTLY anjew juauna Suipnjaul) sSuimollog 3421403 UoN
4+3N[EA 1je} 1€ P2INSE3LU 10U Sa1JIqe)] [elaueuly
* . g 96°Z10°'T 96'TV0'T S3ISSE |eluRUY [0,
- - - L8658 £6'S8 Hsodap A3undag
- - - 6 e [42 444 $13SSE [EIDUBUY 1BYIQ
- - N YT 8T 12 4:14 S)yUBq YuM syisodap w3y
B N 68'C°L 6872L sjuajeainba yses pue ysed
- - 6019 6019 S3|qeAIaIal 3pel])
+3N|BA Jie) JE PaINSeal J0U S3asse |e1dueuly
leloL € 13A97 FACLCT] T 3A31 |230% 350 350D pasplowy RFITY]
anjea 84 ¢ pan|ea sjunowe Juthlie) SIRNIRIEY
SuOy||IW Ul sy €202 "TE Yuew
- s . £8'666'C £8'666°C S3IMIIGE]| [BIDUEUY [E30],
- * : 85°0LT 85°0LT sU|Ige [eueuly JaYiQ
£8 98¢ €898 sayljiqer] asea
- - 69T 7691 513sse |ejides 10} SI10pRJD)
- = 81°049 8T°049 s3|qeded apeJ],
- £9°97'T £9°9Z¢'T s8uIM01.0q UaLNY
- = 69'8Z¢ 69'8Z¢€ (sanungew Jus.un3 Sulpn|aul) sBUIMO.10g JUS1INI UON
«3N|EA JIE} 1€ PAINSEAW 10U SAIIGRY| [EDULL
= - = 8v°150'T 8 1S0°T SJISSE |EIDUEUL [B)O],
= = = LT°S0T LT°S0T Usodap AjlNd3g
. = : 8T TIT 8CTIT $195SE (RIDURUL J3YIO
= = = 67'8¢ 67'8¢ syueq yum syisodap wia,
= z €6 00T £6°00T 5juUs|BAIND3 YSBI pue ysed
= = z 18°965 18°565 S3|qBAIDI31 Speld],
«9N[BA J1e} 18 P2INSeal JoU SIasse |ePue!
|ezo0) € [9A3] ZIPA9] T (3497 eor 150D 180D pasplo Ly 1d1Ad
anjen Jikg Je panjea sjunowe SuAuey Signailitg
PZOZ TE Yalew

AyaJelialy anjen Jiey 3y}

1H|1ge]| |[eloueul) pue S]3sse [elJuBUl JO S3N|eA Jlej pue sjunowe M:_>.:mu 3y} smoys 3|gey mc_\SO__Ow 3yl

anjeA 1ie} pue suopedysse]d SuUNoIIY

SJUBWBINSESW 3N[EA Jie] : Ty 310N

202 ‘TE Y242l POpUa Jesh 3y Jog
(panunuod) spuawiageys [e1dueuly 3Y3 03 SAION

Q3LININM STYIILNIDVINGYHAOld VAONNID




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 42 : Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts as at year end

Rs. in millions

Sr. Na, Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Claims as at year end
a) Indirect tax matters 655 0.70
b) Income tax matters (Refer footnote 4) 65.74 4971
Total 72.29 50.41

1) Pending resolution of the respective proceedings, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above
as it is determinable only on receipt of judgement/decisions pending with various forums/authorities.

2) The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as
contingent liabilities where applicable, in the financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have any effect on its
financial position

3) There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement dated 28th February, 2019, relating to components/allowances paid
that need to be taken into account while computing an employer's contribution of provident fund under the Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous
Provident Act, 1952. The Company has also obtained a legal opinion on the matter and basis the same there is no material impact on the financial statements as
at 31 March 2024, The Company would record any further effect on its financial statements, on receiving additional clarity on the subject

4) A Search and Seizure Operation (‘the Operation’) was conducted by the Income Tax Department under section 132 of the Income-tax Act, 1961 during the
month of December 2020. The Company has received orders u/s 153A for certain assessment years and has filed appeal with CIT(A) against the said orders
Considering the disallowances, management is of the view that the matters involved are normal tax matters, and accordingly the operation will not have any
significant impact on the Company’s financial position and performance for the period ended March 31, 2024

Note 43 : Capital and other commitments

A) Capital commitment

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) Rs. 91.97 millions (March 31, 2023 : Rs. 93.32
millions).

B) Other commitments

The Company has imported certain machinery under the Export Promotion Capital Goods {EPCG) Scheme and accordingly has an export obligation of Rs.266.92
millions (March 31, 2023 : Rs. 284.34 millions ). In this respect the Company has given bank guarantees of Rs. Nil millions (March 31, 2023 : Rs. 3.87 millions) to
the Director General of Foreign Trade (DGFT) and Bond of Rs. 158.20 millions {March 31, 2023 : Rs. 237.40 millions) to the Commissioner of Customs.

Unfulfilled export obl
Year of issue Export obligation to be fulfilled As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
USD millions As. millions USD millions fts. millions
2021-2022 2027-2028 0.57 47.14 123 100.69
2022-2023 2028-2029 1.86 155.08 2.24 183.65
2023-2024 2029-2030 0.78 64.70 - -
3.21 266.92 3.47 284.34




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 44 : Related party disclosure

i) Related parties with whom there were transactions during the year and nature of relationship

HoldIng Company
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited

Fellow Subsldiary

2uventus Healthcare Limited

Emcure Pharmaceuticals Mena FZ-LLC
Lazor Pharmaceuticals Limited
Emcure Pharma Peru S A .C

Tillomed Malta Ltd

Tillomed Laboratories Ltd.

Key Management Personnel

Executlve Directors
Dr. Sanjay Singh
Mr. Samit Mehta

Non - Executive Directors
Mr. Satish Mehta
Mr. Sunil Mehta
Dr. Gyan Chandra Mishra (Upto August 27, 2023)
Mr._ Hitesh Jain {Upto September 10, 2023)
Dr. Shailesh Ayyangar
Dr. Kavita Singh (from January 24, 2023)
Enterprise over which Key Management Personnel have control:
H.M. Sales Corperation
Parinam Law Assaciates

Relative of Key Management Personnel
Mr. Rutav Mehta

i) Transactions with related parties:

Rs. In millions

Sr. |Descriptlon of the nature of transaction / balance Transactlon value 11— Balance outstanding as at
No. during March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2023-24 2022-23 Recelvable | Payable / | Receivable | Payable /
/ (Advance | {Advance | /Advance |Advanceto
from to supplier) from supplier
customer) customer
1) |Sale of goods & services
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 575.97 152.36 14.08 - 0.04
Zuventus Healthcare Limited 2831 3175 - - - =
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Mena FZ-LLC 82.57 148 28 1131 - 73.02
Emcure Pharma Peru S A C 5.15 346 515 - -
Lazor Pharmaceuticals Limited 15.93 5722 50.93 - 53.67
H.M. Sales Corporation 0.49 0.05 0.05 - 0.00
Tllomed Malta Ltd 0.32 - u.32 - E -
2} |Sale of Assets
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 208.22 572 0.01 - 0.29
Zuventus Healthcare Limited 7.20 - - -
Tillomed Malta Ltd 0.29 - 0.29
3} |Purchase of goods
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 393.71 23167 - 106.07 - 260.34
4} |Purchase of assets
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 2.30 0.00 - 2138 - 0.01
Zuventus Healthcare Limited 0.01 - - - -
5) |Security deposlt glven
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited - - 49.99 - 50.01 -
6) |Expenses pald
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 63.03 45.28 B 19.66 - 50.67
H.M. Sales Corporation 3.80 315 - 1.06 B 0.76
Parinam Law Associates 1.90 7.96 - - =
7} |Rent paid
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 148.19 154.05 - 71.59 - 155.68
8) |Lab Services Charges
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 0.0/ 0.06 - - - nneR
9) |Relmbursement of expenses Recelved
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 1.22 - 1.43 - - -
10) |Relmbursement of expenses made
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 159.23 145.20 - 8878 152.40
Tillomed Laboratories Ltd. 22.19 - - 2219 -




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 44 : Related party disclosure {continued)
Rs. in millions

Sr. |Description of the nature - - Transactlon value | ding as at
No. during March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2023-24 2022-23 Receivable | Payable /| Receivable | Payable /
/ (Advance | (Advance | /Advance |Advanceto
from to supplier) from supplier
customer) customer
11) |Corporate guarantee fee pald
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 19.66 15.07 1045 - 16.27
12) |Issue of share options
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 0.89 149 12.03
13) |Advance for Goods and Services
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited . . (22.97)
14} [Amortisation of deferred rent
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 330 3.47 - : 11.39
15) [Unwinding of security deposit
Emcure Pharmaceuticals Limited 323 312
16) |Remuneratlon pald
Key Managerial Personnel
Dr. Sanjay Singh 75.79 75.35 - 15.12 14.52
Mr. Samit Mehta 13.18 13.31 + 1.66 - 1.65
17) |Remuneration pald
Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Mr. Rutav Mehta 0.64 263 = 0.19
18) [Post-employment obligations
Key Managerial Personnel
Dr. Sanjay Singh 1.02 248 - 21.21 . 20.18
19) |Comp d abs provis
Key Managerial Personnel
Dr. Sanjay Singh {0.94) 0.19 5.59 6.53
20) |Commission pald - Non-executive Directors
Dr. Shailesh Ayyangar 250 2.00 . 2.50 . 2.00
Dr. Gyan Chandra Mishra . 075 - 0.75
Mr. Hitesh Jain . 030 - - 030
Dr. Kavita Singh 0.75 - - 075 .
21) |Sitting fees - Non-executive Directars
br, Gyan Chandra Mishea 0.14 022 - -
Mr. Hitesh Jain 012 0.26 - - -
Dr. Shallesh Ayyangar 016 0.08 - - -
Or, Kavita Singh 0.12 -

Note : The amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.

Notes:
All related party transactions entered during the year and outstanding balances were in ordinary course of the business and are on an arm's
length basis. Outstanding balances are unsecured and to be settled in cash.




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 45 : Assets and liabilities relating to employee benefits

a} Defined contribution plans
The Company has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of
12% of basic salary as per local regulations. The contributions are made to provident fund administered by the government. The
abligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation

Contributions are made to employees family pension fund in India for employees as per local regulations. The contributions are
made to provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited ta the amount contributed and
it has no further contractual or any constructive obligation

Defined contribution plans: The Company has recognised the following amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year

Rs. in millions

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Contribution to employees provident fund 26513 19.51
Contribution to employees family pension fund 818 639
Other defined contribution plan 7.21 6.48
Total 40,52 32.38

b} Post-employment obligations
Gratuity
The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous
service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees
\ast drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The
gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions to fund managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India,
Contributions are made as per the demands by Life Insurance Corporation of India
These defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks, such as interest rate risk, etc,

c) Defined benefit plans
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit plan over the year are as follows:

Rs. in millions

Particulars Present value Falr value of Tatal
of obligation plan assets
As at April 1, 2022 104.53 {75.39) 29.16
Current service cost 1531 - 15,31
Interest expenses/{income} 7.07 (6.22) 0.85
Impact of Transfer (in) / out {0.20) {2.20) {2.40)
Mortality charges and taxes 026 0.26
Total recognised In profit or loss 22,18 (8.16) 14.02
Retneasurements

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest
expense/{income)

Actuarial (gain)/ losses - experience {0.19) (0.19)
Actuarial (gain)/ losses - financial assumptions - {0.27) {0.27)
Defined benefit obligatlons
Experience (gains)/losses 4.38 - 438
{Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions 0.55 - 0.55
{Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions (5.15}) - (5.15)
Total amount recognised In other comprehensive income {0.22) (0.46) (0.68)
Employer contribution - {30.95}) (30.95)
Benefit payments (4.02) 4,02 -
As at March 31, 2023 122.47 (110.92) 11.55
Current service cost 15.46 1546
Interest expenses/(income) 9.09 (8.68) 0.41
impact of Transfer (in) / out (0.25) {0.30) {0.55)
Mortality charges and taxes - 0.30 0.30
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 24.30 {8.68) 15.62
Remeasurements

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts Included In Interest
expense/(income)

Actuarial (gain)/ losses - experience - 214 214
Actuarial {gain)/ losses - financial assumptions - (0.69}) {0.69)
Defined benefit obligations
Experience {gains)/losses (3.64) {3.64)
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions E
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions 2.86 - 2.86
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income {0.78) 1.45 0.67
Employer contribution = (10.70) {10.70)
Benefit payments (2.10} 210 .
As at March 31, 2024 143.89 (126.75) 17.14
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GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 46 : Employees stock option plan

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via the Holding Company's Employees Stock Option Plan (“Emcure ESOS 2013”). These
options will vest over period of 3 to 5 years from the grant date and are subject to the condition of continued service of the employees

In the given case all options are issued by the Holding Company The Company does not have an obligation to settle these share based payment
transactions, therefore these options are treated as equity settled transactions. Once vested the option can be exercised within S years from date of
Initial Public Offer {IPO) of the Holding Company. The exercise price of the options is equal to fair market value of the shares as determined by an
independent valuer as at grant dates. If IPO does not take place or shares are not listed within 2 years from the date of grant, Remuneration committee
of the Holding Company at its sole discretion, subject to prior approval of the Holding Company's shareholders' can settle the vested options in cash or
allow exercise of option before listing at a price arrived at by an independent valuer. Expense is recognised over the vesting period with corresponding
increase in other equity

Surmimary of options granted under the plan

Particulars Tranche - 1

Exercise Price* Revised Exercise Price## March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Date of grant October 01, 2013
Opening balance 221 165 30,000 30,000
Grant during the year 221 165
Adjustment for bonus Issue*® 221 165
Cancelled/transferred during the year 221 165
Exercised during the year 221 165 E
Closing balance 221 165 30,000 30,000
Exercisable -
Particulars Tranche - 7

Exercise Price* l Revised Exercise Pricetl March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Date of grant lune 06, 2019
Opening balance 522 466 19,978 19,978
Grant during the year 522 466
Closing balance 522 466 19,978 19,978
Exercisable - . -
farticulars = Tranche - 12

Exercise Price* Revised Exercise Price#f harch 31, 2024 ] March 31, 2023
Date of grant - B May 27, 2021
Opening balance 918 862 20,000 20,000
Grant during the year 918 862 =
Closing balance 918 862 20,000 20,000
Exercisable . - -

*During the year ended March 31, 2016, the Holding Company had issued bonus shares to its shareholders in the ratio of 3:1 Correspondingly,
proportionate adjustment has been made by increasing the number of options granted and reducing exercise price per option. Board of directors vide
resolution dated January 29, 2016 has approved the adjustments to options granted,

# Pursuant to Composite scheme of arrangement for the Holding Company, the exercise price of ESOP's outstanding was revised. The fair value of such
options post madification of exercise price is lower than fair valuation of options before modification

No options expired during the periods covered in the above table.

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry date and exercise prices:

options

Grant Date Revised Exercise Share |Number of share opitions| Revised Exercise Share Numbier of shire
option price {Rs.) March 31, 2024 option price (Rs.) options
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31,2023
October 1, 2013 165 30,000 165 30,000
June 06, 2019 466 19,978 466 19,978
May 27,2021 Fiivd 20,000 RR2 20,000
Weighted average remaining contractual life of 5.89 Years 5.89 Years

Expenses recognised in statement of profit and lo:

55!

Rs. in millions

IPan feulars

March 31, 2024

|

March 31, 2023

|EmDonee share-based payment

089 |

149 |




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 47 : Revenue from contract with customer
Rs. in miltions

Particutars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Revenue recognlsed from contracts with customers 4,220.82 3,730.15

Disaggregation of revenue

Sale of products 3,626.20 3,351.36
Sale of services 151,75 2709
Other operating revenue 442 87 35170
Total 4,220.82 3,730.15

Based an markets

Within India 3,511.05 3,080.81
Outslde India - 709.77 649.34
a. Asia 24165 26741
b. South America 124.01 2747
c. Europe 151.97 256.90
d. Other continents 19214 97.56
Total 4,220.82 3,730.15

During the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 no revenue from transaction with a single external customer amount to 10% or more of the
Company's revenues from external customers.

There is no significant change in the contract asset and contract liabilities.
Performance obligations

The Company satisfies its performance obligations pertaining to the sale of goods at point in time when the control of goods is actually transferred to the
customers. No significant judgment is involved in evaluating when a customer obtains control of promised goods. The contract is a fixed price contract
subject to refund due to returns and do not contain any financing component. The payment for domestic sales is generally due within 7-45 days and for
exports not exceeding 180 days. The Company is obliged for returns/refunds due to expiry & saleable returns. There are no other significant obligations
attached in the contract with customer.

The Company satisfies its performance obligations pertaining to the sale of services over the period of the contract / at point in time, depending on how the
control of the promised asset is transferred to the customer.

There is no significant judgement Involved in ascertalning the timing of satisfaction of performance obligation and in evaluating when a customer obtains
control of promised goods.

The transaction price is ascertained and allocated to the performance obligations based on the standalone price of individual performance obligation.

The transaction price ascertained for the only performance obligation of the Company {i.e. Sale of goods / providing of service) is agreed in the contract with
the customer. There is no variable consideration Involved in the transaction price

Reconclliatlon of contract price with revenue recognlsed In statement of profit and loss: Rs. in mHllons
Particulors March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Contract price 4,349.30 3,822.73
Less:

Amount recognised as returns 96.88 69.58
Amount recognised as expiry 31.60 23.00
Revenue rpcugnived in stdlement of profit and loss 422082 3,730.15
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GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 49 : Segmental reporting

Operating segment are components of the Group whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker to

make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is

available. The Company's board of directors along with it's Managing director, examines the Company's performance and have identified single

reportable operating segment, viz 'Pharmaceuticals' for the purpose of making decision on allocation of resources and assessing its

performance. Board of directors primarily use revenue as a measure to assess the performance of the operating segment.

The Company is domiciled in India. The amount of its revenue from external customers broken down by destination of shipment of goods is

shown in the table below

Entity — wide disclosures:

Rs. in millions

Revenue from external customers

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Sales
India 3,192.70 3,080.81
Outside India 585.25 62225 |
Sub Total (A) 3,777.95 3,703.06
Other operating income
India 318,35 -
Outside India 124,52 27.09
Sub Total (B) 442.87 27.09
Total (A+B) 4,220.82 3,730.15

All non-current assets af the Company are located in India

Note 50 : Expenditure on Research and Development

The total expenditure incurred on Research and Development including in house Research and Development during the year is as follows;

Re. in milllons

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue 65098 738.67
Capital 32.57 108.76
Total 683.55 847.43
R&D expenditure as a % of revenue from operations 16.19% 22.72%

Note 51 : Information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

The information regarding Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the

basis of information available with the Company.

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at
the end of each accounting year

a, Principal outstanding and not overdue as per MSME act
b. Principal outstanding and overdue as per MSME act and interest due thereon

i) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amount of the payment made
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment but
without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006,

iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting
year.

v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under Section 23
of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

716

11.47

001

9.41

28,86

001




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 52 : Government grant

1 Government grants in relation to EPCG are relaled to exemption of basic customs duty an purchase of imported machineries to be used for
the manufacturing of products The Company is required to fulfil the export obligation against duty benefit received Refer Note 43 for the
details of unfulfilled obligations. Based on past experience, the Company is confident that it will fulfil conditions attached to the grant received
During the year Company has fulfil the export obligation and recognised income Rs 11 05 millions (March 31, 2023 Rs. 29 70 millions)

s in il ons

EPCG grants March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at beginning of the year - deferred grant 48.26 43.96
Duty saved during the year 10.78 34.00
Released to the statement of profit and loss 11.05 29.70
Balance at end of the year 4795 4826
Current -

Non-current 47.99 4826

2 The Company has received a sanction for various Government grants towards research and development expenses for life saving drugs and
vaccines, The Company has recognised the income of grant amounting to Rs. 299 37 millions {March 31, 2023 : Rs. 190.87 millions) in Other
Operating Revenue for the eligible expenses incurred towards respective projects, out of which Rs. 67.47 million (March 31, 2023: Rs. 150.85
million) has been accrued as Government Grant receivable under ‘other current financial assets',

Rs. in millions
grants receivable March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Balance at beginning of the year 150.85 8092
Received during the year 38275 1344
Recognised in the statement of profit and loss 299.37 83.37
Balance at end of the year 67.47 150.85
Current 67.47 150.85
Non-current

3. The Company has also received grants amounting to Rs. 10.32 millions {(March 31, 2023 :Rs, 10.32 millions) for which eligible expenses will
be incurred in the next year, accordingly the Company has disclosed the same as Deferred Revenue grants under other current liabilities.

Rs, in mllilions

Deferred revenue grants March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at beginning of the year 1032 117.82
Received during the year

Released to the statement of profit and loss 107.50
Ralance at end of the year 1032 10.32
Current 10.32 10.32
Non-current - -

4. Government Grants amounting to Rs. 114 04 millions {March 31, 2023 : Rs. 114,04 millions) disclosed under other non-current liabilities
related to the amount received to incur capital expenditure for building manufacturing facility. The company will offset these grants at the
time of incurring capital expenditures for the eligible manufacturing facility

Rs. in milllons

Dofarrad capital granis ot March A1, 2024 March 31, 2023

Balance at beginning of the year 114.04 114,04
Received during the year < T
Eligible capital expenditure incurred during the year - -

Balance at end of the vear 114.04 114.04
Current
Non-current 114.04 114.04

5. During the current year, the Company has received eligibility under Production Linked Incentive scheme of the Government of India. The
Company has recognized income of Rs 125.84 millions (March 31, 2023 : Rs 123,30 millions) under the said scheme, Balance receivable under
this scheme of Rs. 130.00 millions as on March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023 : Rs 94.05 millions) disclosed under ‘other current financial assets *




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financlal statements {continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 53 : Corporate social responsibility

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a corporate social responsibility (CSR) committee has been formed by the Company. The areas for CSR activities are promating
education, healthcare and ensuring environmental sustainability Amount spent during the year on activities which are specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act 2013 are

as mentioned below :

Rs. In millions

Partlculars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

() amount required to be spent by the company for the full year
Total amount required to be spent by the company

Less: Utilisation of excess balance relating to relating to earlier years aprroved by board

Net amount required to be spent by the company

{b} amount of expenditure incurred till date
Paid
(i) Construction/acquisition of asset
(i) On purposes other than (i) above
Yet to be paid
(i) Construction/acquisition of asset
(i) On purposes other than (i) above*
Total {b)

(c] shortfall at the end of the year

(e} reason for shortfall

(&} total of previous years shortfall {Cumulative)
{1} nature of CSR activities

(g} Movement in Excess CSR spent balance relating to earlier years
Opening balance
Add: Excess spent in current year
Less: Utilisation of balance during the current year
Clasing balance

985 1014
9.85 10.14
991 10.25
9.91 10.25
N/A N/A
Promoting Healthcare, Promoting Healthcare,
Education Education
0.11 -
0.06 011
017 0.11




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 54 : Ratios as per the Schedule (Il requirements

(a) Current Ralio = Current Assets divided by Current L

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Current Assets 2,763 64 2,921.19
Current Liabilities 2,727 15 3,243.54
Ratio 1.01 0.90
% change from 31 March 2023 13%
Reason for change more than 25%:
Change is not more than 25%

(b) Debt Equity ratin/ Gearing ratio = Total debt divided by Total equity
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Total debt 1,752.45 1,914.08
Total equity 2,505.02 2,182.04
Ratio 0.70 0.88
% change from 31 March 2023 -20%
Reason for change more than 25%:
Change is not more than 25%

(c) Debt Service C: Ratio = Earnings availahle for debt services divided by Total interest, Lease payments and principal repayme
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Profit for the year 322,53 30710
Add: Depreciation and amortizations 41273 35203
Add: Finance cost 216.13 207.13
Add: (Profit)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (16.30) (0.28)
Earnings avallable for debt services 935.09 865.98
Finance cost paid 230.32 234,14
Lease payments 166,31 154,22
Principal repayments of non-current borrowings 145.20 84.02
Total Interest and Principal repayments 541.83 472.38
Ratio 173 1.83
% change from 31 March 2023 -6%
Reason for change more than 25%:
Change is not more than 25%

(d)  Return on Equity Ratlo / Return on Investment Ratio = Profit for the year divided by average equity
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Profit for the year 32253 307.10
Average equity 234353 2,027.51
Ratlo 14% 15%
% change from 31 March 2023 0%,
Reason for change more than 25%:
Change is not more than 25%

(e) Inventery Turnover Ratio = Cost of gaods sold divided by gel v
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Cast of gaods sold 839.47 777.68
Average Inventory 1,438.63 1,361.59
Ratio 0.58 0.57
% change from previous year 2%

Reason for change more than 25%:
Change is not more than 25%




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements {continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 54 : Ratios as per the Schedule Il requirements (continued)

{f}  Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Revenue from aperations {excluding other aperating revenue) divided by average trade receivables

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Revenue from operations 4,220 82 3,73015
Less: other operating revenue {442 87) (351.70)
Net sales 3,777.95 3,378.45
Average Trade Receivables 60338 54684
Ratio 6.26 6.18
% change from previous year 1%

Reason for change more than 25%:
Change is not more than 25%

{g) Trade payables turnover ratio = Credit purchases divided by ge trade payables

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Credit Purchases 2,389.13 2,177.71
Average Trade Payables 93603 1,179.69
Ratio 2,55 185
% change from previous year 38%

Reason for change more than 25%:
Paid off creditors and suppliers

(h)  Net capital Turnover Ritio = Net sales divided by Net Waorking Capital (whereas net working capital = current assets - current liabifities)

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Net Sales NG 3,378.45
Net working capital 36.49 (322.35)
Ratio 103.53 (10.48)
% change from previous year -1088%

Reason for change more than 25%:
Due to decrease in trade payables.

(i)  Net profit ratio = Profit for the year divided by net sales

|Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Profit for the year 32253 307.10
Net Sales 3,777.95 3,378.45
Ratlo 9% 9%
% change from previous year -6%

Reason for change more than 25%:
Change is not more than 25%

) Return on capital employad = EBIT divided by Capital Employed (total equity plus debt and deferred tax Hability)

Parliculars + 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Profit for the year 322,53 307.10
Add: Depreciation and amortisation expense 412.73 352,03
Add: Finance costs 216.13 207.13
Add: Tax expenses 197.93 12439
EBITDA 1,149.32 990.65
EBIT 736.59 638.62
Total equity 2,343.53 2,027.51
Deferred tax liabllity 15.45 -
Non-current borrowings 330.98 474,45
Current borrowings 1,421.47 1,439.63
Total debt 1,752.45 1,914.08
EBIT 736.59 638.62
Capital Employed 4,111.43 3,941.59
Ratlo 18% 16%
% change from prevlous year 11%

Reason for change more than 25%:
Change is not more than 25%




GENNOVA BIOPHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 55 : Code of Social Security

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent in
September 2020 The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified The
Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code

Note 56

Gennova Biopharmaceuticals Ltd {“Gennova” / "Company"), entered into a License Agreement {“Agreement”) with HDT Bio Corp., USA {(“HDT") in August 2021
for the use of HDT's LION carrier technology to formulate a COVID-19 vaccine, register, market and sell said product in India. There were certain disputes which
arose between the parties and in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement, HDT initiated arbitration proceedings against Gennova before the London
Court of International Arbitration (“LCIA”"} for breach and for misappropriation of HDT's trade secrets which is currently ongoing

In May 2024, both the parties resolved their dispute amicably and entered into a settlement agreement which provides amongst others for mutual release from
all claims, debts, and liabilities. Pursuant to the said agreement, HDT will cause the LCIA proceedings to be dismissed

Note 57 : Additional regulatory information required by Schedule III

I No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988
{45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder

ii. The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority

fii. The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956

iv. The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current financial year

v. There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not
been recorded in the books of account

vi. The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year

vii. The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment {including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous
year

viii. There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

ix. The borrowings obtained by the company from banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were was taken.

x. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

Xi The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity{jes), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding {whether recorded
in writing or otherwise) that the Campany shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behaif of the ultimate beneficiaries

Note 58 : Events occurring after March 31, 2024

There are no significant events subsequent to year ended March 31, 2024.
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statement
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